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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
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I
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· P runtJ , ·. . . .. _) •. CIVILAC. TIONNO ......... __ * JUN2421Jlll * .. · ... · 
.. v, .· . . .. .. . . .. . . . . ) · coNS£!1fl' DECReE FOR 

. ·MIRA HEALTiiPRdOUCTS I.W.t-4G ISLAND qFf~@1M@rr INJUNCTION 

3549 

acorporation,etal.. j BIANCO, J. 
Defe!lc!ants. ) BROWN,M.J. 

Plaintiff, the United States of Ameriea, by and through its undersigned counsel, having 

filed a Complaint For Pennancnt Injunction (the"Complaini") &galnstMira Health Products 

Ltd;; a corj)Otation, alid Micha~IS~ Ragno ami MichaelS. R.agno,Jr., individuals (collectively, 
. ', . - . . -· . : . 

"Defendants''), and Defertdiults having appeared and consented to entry of this Decree without 
. . 

contest. without admitting or denl(ing the allegations of the C:otrtplalnt, and before any testimony 

has been taken, and the United States of America, having con~ented to this D.;.,ree; 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED; ADJUDOED, ANI> DECkEED as follows: 

I. . This Court lias juriSdictio~ over the subjeCt matter and allParttcs to this action. 
·- ···. . . . . ,_ . . 

2. The Complaint States a cause of action against Defendants under the Federal 

Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, 21 U.S.C; §§ 301 et $eq. (the "Act"). 

3. The Complaint alleges that Defendants viohite 21. tJ.S.C. § 331(a), by introducing 

or delivering for introduction, and causing to be introduced or delivered for introduction, into 

interstate commerce articles of drilgs that are mi~brandedwithin the meaning of i I U.S.C. 

§ 352(f)(l) in that their labeling fails to bear adequate directions for use. 

4. The Complaint alleges that Defendants violate 21 U.S.C. § 331(k), by causing 

drugs that Defendants hold for sale after· shipment in interstate oo111111eree to become misbrarided 
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within the meaning of21 U.S.C. § 352(t)(l) in that their labeling fails to bear adequate directions 

for use. 

5. The Complaint alleges that Defendants violate 21 U.S.C. § 331 (a) by introducing 

.. ·or delivering, or causing to be introduced or delivered,· into interstate commerce dietary 

supplements, as defined by2JU.S.C; § 321(ft), that lire adulte~at~ within the meaning of21 

U.S.C. § 342(g){l) in that they have beer! prepared, packed, and helcf under conditions that do 

not meet current good manufacturing practice regulations for dietary supplements ("Dietaey 

Supplement CGMP''). 21 C.F.R. Part I II. 

6. The Complaint alleges that Defendants violate: 21 U.S.C. § 33!(k) by causing 

dietary supplements that Ocferidants hold for sale after shipment in interstate commerce to 

become adultemted withiri the meliniilg of21 u.s.c. § 342(g)(l). 

7. Upon entry of this Decree, Defendants rcpresenno the Court that they are not 

directly or indirectly engaged in manufacturing, processing; packing, labeling, holding, or 

distributing any dietary supplement, any product labeled as such, or any drug. If Defendants 

later intend to resume operations at 65 E. Carmans Road, Farmingdale, New York I 1735, or any 

other location, Defendants muSt first notifY FDA in writing at least sixty (60) businesS days in 

advance of resuming operations and must comply with paragraphs 8(A)-(G) and 8(1) of this 

Decree. This notice shall identify the typc(s) of dietary supplements Defendants intend to 

manufacture, process, pack, label, hold and/or distribute, and the facility in which Defendants 

intend to resume operations. Defendants shall not.rcsume operations until FDA has first 

inspected Defendants' facility and operations pursuant to paragraph 8(H), Defendants have paid 

the costs of such inspection(s) pursuant to paragraph 8(1), and Defendants have received written 

2 
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notice from FDA, as required by paragraph 8(1}, and then Defendants shall resume such dietary 

supplement operations only to the extent authorized in FDA's written notice. 

8. Upon entry of this Decree, D~fendants and each and all of their directors, officers, 

agents, representatives, employees, attorneys, successors imd assigns, and any and all persons or 

entities in active concert or participation with any of them who have received actual notice of . 

this Decree by personal service or otherwise are pennanently restrained and enjoined under 

21 U.S:C. § 332(a), and the inherent equitable authority of this Court, from directly or indirectly 

manufacturing, procesliing, packing, labeling, holding; or distributing any dietary supplement, 

any product labeled as such, or any drug at or from 65 E. Cllmlans Road, Farmingdale, New 

York 11735 (the "facility''), or at or form any other location(s) at which Defendants, now or in 

the future, directly or indirectly manufacture,. prepare, process, package, pack, label, hold; and/or 

distribUte dietary supplements, any product labeled a8 such, or any drug unless and until: 

A. Defendants have removed all claims from their product labels; labeling, 

websites owned or conttlllled by Defendants; and in any other media that cause that product to be 

a drug within the meaning of the Act; 

B. Defendants retain, at Defendants' expense,· an independent person or 

persons (the "Labeling Expert"), who is without personal, fmancial {other than the consulting 

agreement between the parties), or familial ties to DefendantS and their families or affiliates, who 

by re&Son of background, ex!iericnce, education, and training is qualified to assess Defendants' 
. . 

. corilpliimce with the Act, to. review the claims Defendants make for each of their products on ali 

labels; labeling, and any internet websites oWned or coritrolled by Defendants.· Defendants shall 

nOtify FDA in writing of the Identity and qualifications of the Labeling Expert as soon as they 

retain such expert. At the conclusion of the Labeling Expert's review, the Labeling Expert shall 

3 
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prepare a written report a.nalyzing whether Defendants are operating in compliance with the Act 

and in particular, certifywhether Defendants have removed all claims from each of their product 

labelS, labeling, websltes ~Wiled or controlled by Dcfenwints, and in any other media that cause 

··. any of Defendants' products to be drugS within the meaning of the Act,21 U.S.C § 32l(g). The 

report shlill include the speciflc results ~fthe LabelingEipert•s review, inclu<ling references to 

·. product names artd regulatio~s addressed in the process 6f conducting the review. The report 

shall also include copies of all materials reviewed by the Labeling Expert' The Labeling Expert 

shall submit this report concurrently to Defendants and FDA no later than ten (I 0) business days 

after completing this review; 

C. befencliints i:etain, at Defcndallts' e:X:pcnse, an independent person or 

. pet,o!IS (the "Dietary • Supplement CGMP Expert"), who i$ witho~t any personal or financial ties 

(other than the retentio~ ~re~CIJt)to Defendants and/or th:irfamilies, and who; by reason of 

. background, training; eduUtiori, o~ ex~rlence, IS q;mlitied to Inspect Ddendimts' facillt}tto ·. 

determine. whether the facility, methods; processes, and ~ntrols arc operated and administered in 

conformity with Dietary Supplenient COMP, 21 C.F.R. Part Ill. Defencliints shall notify FDA 

in writing of the ideittity and qualifiCIIiions of the Dietary Silppieinent CGMP Expert as soon as 

they retein such expert; 

D. The Dietary Supplement CGMP Expert performs a comprehensive 

inspection of Defendants' facility and the methods and cantrols used to manufacture, prepare, 

pack, label, and hold diewy supplements, and certifies in writing to FDA (l) that he or she has 

inspected Defendants' facility, methods, processes, and cantrols; and (2) whether' Defendants' 

operations arc, in the Dietsry Supplement CGMP Expert's opinion, compliant with this Decree, 

theAct, and its implenientiilg regulatio!IS .. The Dietary Supplement CGMP Expert's report of 

4 

' __ · -~-

Case 2:14-cv-03549-JFB-GRB   Document 3   Filed 06/24/14   Page 4 of 19 PageID #: 35



------··--. ---

Case 2:14-cv-03549-JFB-GRB Document 1-1 Filed.06/05/14 Page 5 of 19 PageiD #: 13 

the inspection; which shall be submitted to FDA, shall include, but not be limited to, a 

detcnnination of whether Defendants have methods, processes, and controls to ensure that they: 

(1) Maintain, clean, and sanitize, as necessary, all equipment, utensils, 

and other contact surfaces used to manufacture, package, label; or hold components or dietary 
. . 

supplements, as required by 2t C.F.R, § llt.27(d); · 

(2) . · · Coilduct at least one appropriate tc~ Or examination to verify the 

identity of every component that is a dietary ingredient before using such components, as 

required by 21 C.F.R. § 111.75(a)(l)(i); 

(3) Confinn the identity of every component that is not a dietary 

ingredient and determine whether applicable componeitt specifications are met before using such 

components, as required by 21 C.F.R. § 11 1.75(a)(2); 

. (4) ·· Verify that finished batches of dietary supplements meet product 

specifiCations for identity, purity, strength, and c<imposition, as ~uired by 21 C.F.R. 

§ ll I. 7S{c); 

(5). Include' in the batch production records complete information 

relating to the production and eontrolofeach batch; aa required by 21 C.F.R. § lll.255(b). 

Pursuant to 21 C.P.R. § II 1.260, such information includes:. 

(i) The unique identifier assigned to each component, 

packaging, and label used (21 C.F.R. § 111.260(d)); 

(ii) The identity and weight or measure of each component 

used (21 C.F.R. § 111.260(e)); 

(iii) A statement of the actual yield and a statement of the 

percentage oftheoretical yield at appropriate phases of processing (21 C.F.R. § 111.260(f)); 

5. 
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(iv) Documentation, at the time of perfonnance, of packaging 

and labeling operations, including the unique identifier assigned to packaging and labels used (21 

C.F.R. § 111.260(k)(1)); 

(v) Documentation, at the time of performance, ofpackaging · 

and iabeling operirtions; ill.cluding an actual representative label; or a cross-reference to the 

. physical location of the actual or tepreselltative label s~ified in the ~aster manufacturing 

record (21 C.F.R. § 11 I.260(k)(2)); 

(vi) Documentation, at the time ofperfonnilnce, that quality 

control personnel approved and released, or rejected, the batch for distribution (21 C.F .R. 

§ 111.260(1)(3)); 

(6) Maintain batch production records so that such records accurately 

follow the appropriate master manufacturing record and demonstrate that each step of the batch 

production record is perfonned, as required by 21 C.F.R. § 1ll.2SS(c); 

(7) Hold components, dietary supplementll, paclaiging, and labels 

Under conditions that do llot lead tO the mix-up; CcintanUllation, or deterlorati~n of components; 

dlCtary suppiCiitents, packaging, arid labels, as requlled by2l C.F.R. § 111.4SS(c); 

(8) Conduct all required material reviews and make all required 

disposition decisions; liS requited by 21 C.P.R.§ 1 I 1.113(a); and 

(9) Usc equipment and utensils that are of appropriate design, 

construction,· and WOrkrnilnShip to enable them to be suitable for their intended usc and tO be 

. adequately cleaned andprojlerly mail'itained,as required by 21 C.F.R. § ll1.27(a); 

E. Defendants ~call and destroy, under FDA's supervision, alllinexpired 

. drugs and dietary supplements milnUfacfuted, proecssed, packed, labeled, held, and/or distributed 

6 
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during the time period beginning Augi.ISt I, 2010 through and including the date of entry of this 

Decree. Defendants shall bear the costs of destruction and the costs of FDA's supervision. 

Defendants shall not dispase of any such products in a manner contrary to the provisions of the 

Act, any other federal law, or the laws or any State or Territory, as defined in the Act, in which 

the products arc disposed; 

F. Should the Labeling Elc~crt or Dietary Supplement CGMP Expert 

(cOllectively, "Experts") identify any deficiencies in their reports as described in paragraphs S(B) 

and 8(0): 

(I) · Defendants shall report to FDA and the Experts in writing the 

actions they have taken to correct such deficiencies; and 

(2) The Experts shall certify in writing to FDA whether, based upon 

the Experts' further review and/or iilspections(s), Defendants; facllity and their methods, 
. . 

processes, and contl'<>ls used tonuimifacture; process, prepiue, pack, label, hold, or distribute 

their dietary supplements (and all products laboled as such) and drugs appear to be in compliance 

with the Act, its implementing regulations, and this Decree; and whether Defendants have 

removed all claims from each of their product labels, labeling, websites owned or controlled by 

Defendants, and in any other media that cause any of Defendants' products to be drugs within 

the meaning oftha Act; · 

G. Defendants certify in writing to FDA that none of their products intended 

for human use, irlcluding, but not limited to, bOdybuilding, sexual enhalicement, and/or weight-

loss products, contain Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients, steroids, or steroid analogs; 

7 
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H. FDA representatives inspect Defendants' faeility to determine whether the 

requirements ofthis Decree have been met and whether Defendants are operating in conformity 

with this Decree, the Act, and its implementing regulations; and 

I. Defendants have reimbursed FDA fot the costs of all FDA inspections, 

investigations, Supervision, analyses, examinations; and reviews that FDA deems necessary to 

evaluate Defendants' compliance with paragtaph 8; at the rates set forth in paragraph 1 S below; 

1. FDA notifies Defendants in writing that they appear to be in compliance 

with the requirements set forth in paragtaphs 8(A)-(G) and (1) of this Decree. In no circumstance 

shall FDA's silence be construed as a substitute for written notification. 

Nothing in this paragraph shall prevent the individual Defendants from seeking and/or 

. obtaining employment at retail stores that sell dietary supplements, provided the individual 

Defendants have no ownership interest in such retail stores or the dietary supplements sold 

therein. 

9. Within ten (10) business days after the entry ot'this Decree, Defendants, under 

FDA's supeiirision, shall destroy all dietary sup1Jlements, all pi'oducts labeled as such, and all 

drUgs, including i:omponents of such articles, that are in Defendants' possession, custody, or 

cOntrol as of the date of entry of this Decree. Defendants shall bear the costs of destruction and 

the costs of FDA's supervision. Defendants shall not dispose of any such products in a manner 

contrary to the provisions of the Act, any other federal law, or the laws or any State or Territory, 

as defined in the Act, inWhich the products are disposed. . 

10. Upon resuming operatioiis after complying with the requirements of paragraph 8 

and receiving FDA's written notification pursuant to pilrllgraph 8(1), Defendants shall retain an 

independent person or penons who shall meet the criteria described in paragraph 8(B) to conduct 

8 

Case 2:14-cv-03549-JFB-GRB   Document 3   Filed 06/24/14   Page 8 of 19 PageID #: 39



Case 2:14-cv-03549,JFB-GRB Document 1-1 Filed 06/05/14 Page 9 of 19 PageiD #: 17 

audit inspections of Defendants' facility no lciss frequently than once every six (6) months for a: 

period of no less than five (5) yeiLrs (hereinafter, the "Auditor''); The first audit shall occur not 

more than six months after Defendants have received FDA's written notification pu.:Suant to 

. paragraph 8(J). If befetidarits·choose, the ~uditor may be th¢ ~~ petsod 0; persons retained as 

. thciabelifig sip~ tid:>ietarY S~pplement coMJ.. lk)lert d~sdribed iri. paragraphs B(BH¢) • .. ·-·· ... -. '.-. ' ';,. ·. ,·.' . . . .·· . __ ', ; .... ···--' ·-·· '•'' ---- _, . ·- .. _' ,'_ .·-·-- - -. •' 

A. At the conclusion of each audit iriilpeCtlon; the Auditor shall prepare a 

detailed written audit report ("Audit Report'') analyzing vvliether Defendants are in compliance 

with this Decree, the Act, and its implementing regulations, and identifying any deviations from 

such requirements ("Audit Report· Observations"), 

B. Elich Audit Report shall contain a written certification that the Auditor: 

(a) has personally l'CVie'VI'ed all of Defendants' product labels, labelirig, andwebsites; and. 

· (b) persaria:lly certifieswh.cther the product labels; labeling; ami internet websites do not make 

. ciaims that ca\ISe DefendantS'. products to be drugs within the in caning of the Act. . 

C. As a part of every Audit Report, the Auditor sliall assess the adequacy of 

corrective actions taken by Defendants to eilrrcet all previi>w Audit Report ObServations. The 
Audit Reports sliall be delivered contemjx)raneously to Defelldarits anHDA by cOurier service 

or overnight deiivery scmoice, ni> later than ten (I 0) b\ISiri~s days after the date the Audit 
. '• . . . . . 

InspeCtion is completed. In addition, Defendants shall maintain the Audit Reports in separate 
. . . 

files at Defendants' facility and shall prontJltly make the Audit Reports available to FDAupon 

request. 

D. if an Audit Report contains ariy observations' indicilting that Defendants' 

dietary supplements, products labeled as such, lind/or drugs are not in compliance with this 

Decree, the Act; or its impleilleitting regulations, Defendants shall, within fifteen (I 5) business 

9 
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. . · .• days of recejpt or th~Audit Rejx>rt; Correct thqse observitti~ns, unleSs FDA notifies Defendants 
. . '- ·-··, ' ' ._· •,, ., ' ... - - ',• . . .-. ,.•'' - ... ·.· -, ' . - .. -· 

thllt a sho~r tillle period is n~sary. It, atrer recei~ill~ the Audit Rq>ort, Oofcndan~ believe 

thitt correction otth~ dcviatlOf1ll will take longer than fifteen ( 15) business days, Defeltdantil 

shall, within ten (I 0). business. dilys of teeeipt of the AUdit I{eport, siJbmiito FbA .~ ~riting a 
·proposed Sl:hedul~ for c~m1t~ting colt'e#io'J!$ (''A@it ¢o~tion SchediJ)e•;j; "lbeAudit 

·;-,' ' :. ~ . . ':·- '.':-: '.· 

ChritCtion S~~~~~Lt.n\U:i~b¢·~vi<:W~d···Bh<i'aJ,provCc:l•by··priA:·iii.M"iiliig·pricir·ro.·ilnptementation 
. ' . . '<' ·. ____ '',- . . ... -.- ' \ ·. ' '· -. ·- . ',, ' - .. ' . . 

by DefendaritS. fu no ~frcu.ristance llhiill iDA's siieltce 6¢ coifstrued. as ~· ~ubstitUie. f~r Written . . '', . .: '--.- .--·· ···'· - ·: ... · . ·, •, ·._ . _ .. ,_ ' . ·- '·. 

ap. provat [)~fe~d~rns· shall ~~plete allco!TCiiiioil~ acC<irding to: th~ appr-6\fedAudit Correction 
' '- . ' ._.; . ·.. . . ' ... ; ., .. ' "· . . ·- . . ' .. ' ··-. 

Schedul~. ·Immediately llpon correCtion, [)efcndlilits shall submit documentation of their 
. . . ' . - . . . . . ' ' . 

. corrections to. the A~ditor; Within twenty (20)busin~ss da;s oftheAudltQr's receipt of 

Defendants; documentation ofcorreciions, unless FDA notifies Def~nd811~ that a shotier time 

· period is necessary,· or wiiliin thl! time period provided in a. corn:ction schedule approved by 

fDA, the.Auditorshall review the actions taken byDefendlilits to comet the Audit Report 

Observations: Within fi~~ (5) business days of llegillriing that review, the AuditOr Shall report in 
..... .-.' . 

. .. · Writing tO. FI>A\\'!teihei:~h #(ilie Audit R.el!Oti Obsei'vatillns hiis· b¢en co11'eeted and, if not, 

\v~ich At~<lit Re~tf Obktvati~ns mnain ullccitreeied. . 

11. Upon entr)' (}fthis Deeree,Defendants, ~dati oftheirditectOrS,. officers, agents, 

representatives, employees; attorrieys; suc~essors ~d assigns, and anyand aU persons or entities 

. in aCtive concert 0~ parti~ip.tlon with ally of th~tri. ~ pertrianendyrestt8irled and enjoined . 

. undct 21 us.c. § ~3~(a)tro1Jlaltectiy orilldircctly doillg ~r ~uslngfo be don~ 8lly of the .. ' ·_- - - · ....... · .. -- .. "' . . ... . . . ,-" ,- -' ·... .. " .... · - . - . 

10 
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A. Violating.21 U.S.C. § 33 l(a); by iritrodueiilgot: deliveriJlg, or causing to 

. be introduced in d~livered, inth iiltet:state commeteci ~5 that ~m~bnmded within llie 

. ·· meaningof2lU.~.C.§~St(t)(f);. 
Q •. · · Viotlltirig 2IU.s.c; §331(k); byca\lsiltg diugs ittat· Defendant~ hold for 

. · .. sale after shlpmelltiii i~te i:om~eicetobecilrite nlisb~ded witJt~ the meaning of 

. 2lU.S.C; § 3S2(f)(l); ·. 

C. Violating 21l].~.C. § 331(a), b)l inifoduciilg or deHveriilg, or causing to 

be introduced or. delive~ into Interstate commeti:e foOd (dietary suppl~ents) th&t is 

adul«lratcd withi11 the ~~linlh~ of21 l[.S;d · § 342(8)(1}; IUld · 

.•· D. •·.·. VIollltingiiU$~C. § 33t(k);b)ieausing tood(dictarysupplenients) that 

:DefendlintS hold fur &ale a&r shlpment.ili interstate comm~ree to bei:o~e adlliterilted with~ the . 

· meaning of21 u.s, c. § 342(g)(l). · 

12. · If, at any time after this oecree has bee!l entered, FDA determines, based on the 

results of an inspection,. a review of Defendants' products, product labels; labeliilg, or websites 

. owned or oontrolled by Defendants, a report prepared by Defendants' ExpertS or the Auditor, or 

· · ally other infotmation, thatDefendants have failed to comply With any provision oftws Decree, 

. . hilve violated the Act cit iis impitrnentb\g regulatioilil, or that additional corrective action& are 

. · neeessary to aChieve complian<ic witlt the Act, appll~b/e regulations; and/or this Deeree, FDA 

• ~ay, as··all<iwhen it ~lnsnecessary, hotity Oef~ndantSlli Ymtingofthenoncompliance and 

Order Oefendallts tO take appn>priate corrective action, irich.idllig, but not limited to; ordering 

. · Defendallts to immecliat~ly take one or more of the follo"'ing aCtions: · · . 

A. . . Cea$e manufacturing, proceMHng, ~ilig, ialielilig, holding, and/or ·-.. . ...... _ ., - ., ·- _. . . -. _- -- .. 

. · distributing:ally ot all diet&ty SilpJ)Iemen'ts, allprodilcts Iabeled ail sijCh, and/or all drugs; 

11 
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. . '. . 

B. Recall, ~t Defendants; ex'pense, Bily dietary supplement, any product 
. . . . 

labeled as such, and/or any drug that in FDA's judgment is adulterated, misbranded, or otherwise 

in viomtion of this Decree; the Act, or its impleme~ting regulations; 

c. Revise, modify, expand, cir ci>ntinue iO subiliit ~Y reports or plaris 

prepared jlllfSuant to this 'l>ecrce; 

D. . · subn\it additional reJ;orts or inforrii~tion iO FDA as requested; 

E. Issue a saf~ alert; and/or 

F. 1'ake any other corrective actions ail FDA, in its diseretion, deems 

necessary to bring Defendants into compliailcc with this Decree, the Act, or its implementing 

regulations. 
. . 

This remedy sh&ll be separate and aj)811: from, arid in addition to, any other remedy . 

available! to the United States tinder this Decree or under the· law• 

13. Upon receipt ofllny order iss~ed by FDA pursuant to plll'agraph12; Defendants 

shBtl bnmedhttely arid fullY comply with the terms of the orde~. Any cessation of operations or 

other aCtion described in paragraph 12 sh&ll continue until befcndants recci'Ve wrltten 

notification from FDA that Defendants appelir to be in compliance with this Decree, the Act, and 

its implementing regulations, and that Defendants may resume operations. The cost of FDA 

inspections, sampling, testing; travel time, arid subsistence expenses to Implement the remedies 

set fOrth in paragraph 12 sh&ll be borne by Defendants at the rate$ specified in paragraph 15. 

14. 'R.epresentati~es of FDA shalf be permitted, without prior notiee and as and when · 

FDA deems necessary; to inspeet Defehdaitts• plaeesofbusin~s. andwitholit prior notice, take 

any other measures necessary to mOnitor and ensure continuing compliance with the terms of thiS 

Decree. During inspections, FDA representatives stiau be pennitted io: have immediate access 
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tO buildings, equipment, raw ingredients, in-p~Wess materials, finished products, containers, 

paelaiging material, labeling, and other material th~rein; take photographs and make video 

recotdint.; takf! samples ofDeferldants' raw ingredients, in-process materials; finished products, 
. ' . . . . ', 

containers, pacbging material, labeling, and other material; and examine and copy ~II records 
: . . . 

relating w th~ manufac~re, proeessing, packlng,lab~llng, holdinS, and distribution of any and 

all dietary suppleim;nts a:tld their comportents. ~e inSjlectloiiS shallbe per~itted Upon 

presentation of a copy of this l)ecree ll!ld U:ppiOpriate credentials. The inspection authority 
. . .. 

granted by this Decree is separate from, and In addition to, the ailthority to make inSpections 

under the Act, 21 U.S.C. § 374. 
. . . ' . 

15. . Defendants shallreimburse FDA for the costs ohll FDA inSpections, 

investigations, supervision, ail.alyses, examinations, and reviews that FDA deems necessary to 

evaluate Defendants' compliance wlth. any part of this Decree at the standard rates prevailing at 

the time the costs are incurred. As ot'thedate ofentryofthis Decree, these tetes are: $87.57 per 

hour or fraction thereof per representative for inspeCtion and investigative work; $ j 04.96 per · 

hOur Or fractiOn th~f jlet rCpteSCntative forllllliJytical Or rtview WOrk; $0.565 pcr mile fOr 

ttavel expenses by automobile; 8ovCinnient rate ~r the equivalent for .travel tw air or other 

mellllS; and the published goverittnent per diem tete for subsistence expenses Where necessary. 

In the event that the standilrd rates appiicable tO FDA supervision of court-ordered compliance 

ate modified, these rates shall be iticreased or decreased without further order of the Court. 

16. Within ten (I 0) business days after the date of DefendantS' notice to FDA a:s 

descl'ibed in paragraph 7, DefCmdants sh&ll post a copy of this Decree in a common aiea at 

DefendantS' facility and at any other location at which DefendantS conduct business and shall 

ensure that the becree remains p~sted foras long as the Decree ~ains in effect. 
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17. Within ten (10) business days after the entryofthis Decree, Defendants shall 

provide a copy of the Decree by personal service or certified mail (return receipt requested) to 

each and all of their directors, officers, agents, representatives, employees, attorneys, successors 

and assigns, and ally alld all persons or entities in active concert or participation with Bily of' them 

(''ASsociated. Persons''). Within tWenty(20) busine~~ days afte~ the d~te of entry ofthis Decree, 

OilCendants shall provide to FDA al\ affidavit stating the fact and manner of their compliance 

with' this paragraph, identifying the names, addresses, and positions of all persons who have 

received a copy of this Decree. 

18. In the event that any of the Defendants becomes associated with any additional 

Associated Person(s) at any time after entry of this Decree, Defendants shall within ten (10) 

business days after the commencemcrtt of such, association:, (a) provide a .copy of this Decree, by 

personal service or certified mail (restricted delivery, return receipt requested), to such 

Associated Person(s); and (b) provide to FDA an affidavit staring the fact and manner of 

compliance with this paragraph, ideJltifying the names, addresses, and positions of all Associated 

Persons who received a copy of this Decree pursuant to this paragraph. 

19. Defendants shall notify FDA in writing at least fifteen (15) business days before 

any change in ownership, name, or character of their business that occurs after entry of this 

Decree, including an incorporation, reorganization, creation of a subsidiary, relocation, 

dissolution, bankruptcy, assignment, sale, or any other change in the atructure or identity of Mira 

Hcalth Products Ltd., or the sale or assignment of any business assets, such as buildings, 

equipment, or inventory that may affect obligstiorui arising out of this Decree. Defendants shall 

provide a copy of this Decree to any prospective successor or assign at least twenty (20) business 

days prior to any sale or assignment. Defendants shall furnish FDA with an affidavit of 
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compiiance with this paragraph no later than .ten (I 0) business days prior to such assignment· or 

change in ownership. 

20. All notifications, correspondence, and communications to FDA required by the 

terms of this Decree shall be addressed to the District Director, New York District Office, 158-
. . 

15 Liberty Avenue, Jamaica, Ntw York, 11433 .. 

21. Should Defendants fail to comply with any provision ofthis Decree, the Act, or 

its implementing regulations, inclUding any time frame imposed by this Decree, then Defendants 

shail pay to the United States of America: five thousand dollars ($5,000) in liquidated damages 

for each day such violation continues; an additional sum of one thousand five hundred dollars 

($1,500) iri liquidated damages per day, per violation for each violation of this Decree, the Act, 

and/or its implementing regulations; and an additional sum in liquidated damages equal to twice 

the retail value ofany distributed dietary supplements that are adulterated or otherwise in 

violation of this Decree, the Act, or itS implementing regulations. The remedy in this paragraph 

shall be in addition to any other remedies available to the United States under this Decree, any 

other Decree to which DefendantS are subject, or the law. 

22. Should the United States bring and prevail in a contempt action to enforce the 

terms of this Decree, Defendants shall, in addition to other remedies; reimburse the United States 

fur its attorneys' fees (including overhead), investigational and analytical expenses, expert 

wimess fees, and court costS relating to such contempt proceedings. . 

23. Defendants shall abide by the decisions of FDA, and FDA's decisions shall be 
. . . . •' . . . . 

final. All decisions c<mfetred upon FDA in this Decree shall be vested in FDA's discretion and, 

if contested; shall be reviewed by this Court under ihe arbitrary and capricious standard set forth 

inS U.S.C. § 706{2)(A). Review by the Court of any FDA decision rendered pursuant to this 
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Decree shall be based exclusively Oil the written record before FDA at the time the decision was 

made. No discovery shall be taken by either party. 

24.. No sooner than five (S) years after satisfYing the obllsations of paragraphs S(A)-

.. (G) arid (I) artd receiving written notification from FDA pursi.Jant to paragraph S(J) of this 

oc:C~e. Defelldantsmay petitionthis Court for an order to dissolve this Decree~ IfDefendants 

have maintained, to FDA's satisfaCtion, a state of continuous compliance with this Decree, the 

Act, and aU applicable regulations during the five (5) years preceding DefendBnts' petition, the 

United States will not oppose such petition. 

25. This Court retains jurisdiction over this action and the parties thereto for the 

purpose of enforcing and modifYing this Decree and for the purpose of granting such additional 

relief as may be necessary or appropriate. 

1014. 

~'ftATESDISTIUCT JUUUt> 
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Entry consented to: 

For Defendants 

-~~ MICHA.EL:RAo~. 
Individually litld on behalf of 
Mira Health Products Ltd., as its Owner 
and Chief Executive Officer 

dii~R 
Individually and on behalf of 
Mira Health Products Ud., as its 
Quality Assurance/Quality Control 
Manager 

For Plaintiff 

LOR.E'lTA E. l.YNCH 
United States Attorney 

[A TfORNEY NAME] 
Assistant United States Attorney 

~ .. ·· ~ ;;:,:::; 
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MELANIE T. S GH 

Consumer Protection Branch 
Department of Justice 
Civil Division 
Washington, D.C. 20044 

OF COUNSEL: 

WILLIAM B. SCHULTZ 
General Counsel 

ELIZABETH H. DICKINSON 
Chief Counsel 
Food and Drug Division 

ANNAMARJE KEMPIC 
Deputy Chief Counsel for Litigation 
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Entry consented to: 

For Defendants 

MICHAELS. RAGNO 
Individually and on behalf of 
Mira Health Products Ltd., as its Owner 
and Chief Executive Officer 

MICHAEL S. RAGNO, JR. 
Individually and on behalf of 
Mira Health Products Ltd., as its 
Quality Assurance/Quality Control 
Manager 

RICHARD D. COLLINS 
Collins, McDonald & Gann, P.C. 
Attorney for Defendants 

For Plaintiff 

LORETI A E. LYNCH 
United States Attorney 
Eastern District of New York 

THOMAS A. McFARLAND 
Assistant United States Attorney 
610 Federal Plaza, 5th Floor 
Central Islip, New York 11722 

MELANIE T. SINGH 
Trial Attorney 
Conswner Protection Branch 
DePartment of Justice 
Civil Division 
Washington, D.C. 20044 

OF COUNSEL: 

WILLIAM B. SCHULTZ 
General Counsel 

ELIZABETH H. DICKINSON 
Chief Counsel 
Food and Drug Division 

ANNAMARIE KEMPIC 
Deputy Chief Counsel for Litigation 
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CHRISTOPHER A. FANELLI 
Assistant Chief Counsel for Enforcement 
United States Department of Health and 

Human Services 
Office of the General Counsel 
Food and Drug Administration 
10903 New Hampshire Avenue 
W03!-4581 
Silver Spring. MD 20993 
301-796-8559 
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